Cornwall Public Library
October 8, 2025
Regular Meeting Agenda

l. Roll
Il. Approval of Agenda

Il Approval of the Minutes: September 18, 2025
V. Financial Review:

A. Approval of Warrant #3
V. Public Remarks

VI. Communications/Donations

VIl.  Director’s Report — See Google Docs

VIIl.  Committee Reports
A. Finance Committee: Carol Stein to relate information on Foundation
B. Policy Committee
C. Building, Grounds & Sustainability Committee
D. Friends: Annual Meeting October 11, 2025, 9:30 AM
E. Personnel Committee
F. Strategic Planning Committee

IX. Unfinished Business: Vote on RCLS Budget

X. New Business: Holiday Schedule for calendar year 2026

XI. Public Remarks

XIl. Adjournment

Next Regular Board Meeting Wednesday, November 12, 2025, 7 PM



Cornwall Public Library Board of Trustees Meeting
September 18, 2025, 7:00 p.m.
Minutes

Meeting was called to order by Christopher DeFilippi at 7:00 p.m.

I. Roll:
Trustees Present: Christopher DeFilippi (President), Michelle Query (Vice President), Fran
Kramer, Amy Stermer, Brandt Knapp

Also: Charlotte Dunaief (Director), Cathy Squillini (Minutes), Allison Barry (Treasurer)
Excused: Lucinda Poindexter (Secretary), Julia Dahl

Il. Approval of Agenda: A motion to approve the agenda was made by Amy Stermer,
seconded by Michelle Query and unanimously approved.

lll. Approval of the Minutes: A motion to approve minutes of August 13, 2025, Regular Board
Meeting was made by Michelle Query, seconded by Fran Kramer. Discussion: Typo under IX
Unfinished Business (trustees). The amended Minutes were unanimously approved.

IV. Financial Review: A motion to approve Warrant #2 in the amount of $96,765.39 was made
by Michelle Query, seconded by Fran Kramer. Discussion: What is Ingram Library Services? A
vendor for Adult Services books. A vote to approve Warrant #2 was unanimous.

V. Public Remarks: None

VI. Communications and Donations: The Director circulated copies of recent newspaper
items pertaining to the library. One donation from Hannaford for the bouquet drive was received
in the amount of $27.00.

VII. Director’s Report: See Google Docs for full report.

The Director asked, on behalf of Pat Rovello, for thoseTrustees who have not yet done so to
read/sign the Whistleblower Policy and the Conflict of Interest Form and return both to her
office.

Highlights from the Director's Report:

Hired Library Assistant F/T for Youth Services - Aaron Gaines

Hired Library Clerk P/T for Youth Services - Pat Leonard

Blood Drive (8/21/25) - 37 donors

Upcoming programs: 10/6/25 Gomez Mill House, 10/9/25 Actor’s interpretation of
Legend of Sleepy Hollow. The Actor’s interpretation is a collaborative effort of Dawn
Thornton - Adult Services and Brenda Goldfarb.

e CPL received a check in the amount of $4,946.00 from RCLS for LLSA.



VIIl. Committee Reports:

Committee Goal Setting FY26: Christopher DeFilippi thanked the Board members for
submitting Committee goals to date.

Finance Committee: Committee goals include:
e A policy to offer compensation for holidays to part-time staff. The Committee will meet to
develop a first-draft.
e Establishment of a technology replacement fund.

The Committee is also proposing moving approximately $400,000 from a simple savings
account to a CD.

Policy: None

Buildings, Grounds, and Sustainability: The Committee met with Gregory Rocco re:
Circulation Desk model. A building plan (done by Butler Rowland and Mays in 2017), as well as
a garden/grounds plan (done by Maureen Drury) will be scanned to Google Drive.

In the Director’s absence (vacation), a plumber was called to fix a clogged sink in the Women’s
bathroom, and a ‘mystery’ pipe that was draining into the Janitor’s Closet sink.

The Director stated that DASNY called with a question about the upcoming parking lot
refurbishment. The question asked if there was any work being performed on areas of the lot
that had already been refurbished in the past. The planned repair of the area in the parking lot
that floods will include drainage work which was not previously done.

Friends: The annual meeting will be held on October 11 at 9:30 am right before the Cider and
Donut Book Sale.

The Board discussed the need for an online component for donation collection.

Personnel: A motion to hire Patricia Leonard as P/T Library Clerk in Youth Services was made
by Amy Stermer, seconded by Michelle Query, and unanimously approved.

Strategic Planning Committee: The Committee is currently working to categorize survey data
in keeping with its Committee Goals. Once the data are categorized the Committee will begin to
identify action steps. They requested that Charlotte look for free training on Strategic Planning.

IX. Unfinished Business: The Board members asked the Director if a plan was established to
handle parking during the work on the parking lot during the week of October 20-24. The



Director informed the Board that information about the project and parking was included in the
recent CPL Newsletter. A similar message will be posted on Instagram and Facebook.

Patrons are being asked to park either at Munger Cottage or Town Hall for the week of October
20-24, 2025.

An email blast dedicated to the parking lot refurbishment will be sent out the week before the
project begins to remind patrons to park in designated areas AND that CPL will remain open
during the work.

X. New Business: The Director reviewed the ILS portion of the RCLS budget with the Board.
She also stated that she will post the budget in its entirety in Google Drive. The budget total is
$4,153,100.00, with a 3% increase for CPL. The Board will vote on the budget at the October
Trustees’ meeting.

Xl. Public Remarks: None

XIl. Adjournment: A motion to adjourn was made by Michelle Query, seconded by Fran
Kramer, and unanimously approved. The Regular Board Meeting was adjourned at 7:26 p.m.

Next Regular Board Meeting, Wednesday, October 8, 2025, 7:00 p.m.



Cornwall Public Library

Warrant #3
September 2025
DATE NAME AMOUNT
1001 General Fund (7848) - 3 - 2
09/02/2025 Cornwall Public Library Payroll -34,866.72
09/02/2025 Elan Financial Services -2,287.56
09/02/2025 Nationwide NYS Deffered -600.00
09/10/2025 Aflac -93.70
09/10/2025 Benninger Landscaping LTD -1,050.00
09/10/2025 Interstate Waste Services -183.04
09/10/2025 Verizon- Wireless -16.62
09/16/2025 Cornwall Public Library Payroll -31,982.30
09/16/2025 Nationwide NYS Deffered -600.00
09/16/2025 NYS & Local Retirement -897.50
09/17/2025 Verizon -119.00
09/17/2025 NYS Health Insurance Pending Acct -9,053.21
09/17/2025 NET 2 PHONE -228.76
09/23/2025 Village of Cornwall on Hudson -218.64
09/23/2025 Patricia Rovello -555.00
09/23/2025 Lois Kohiman -555.00
09/23/2025 Wini White -555.00
09/23/2025 Marie C Clark -555.00
09/30/2025 Toshiba -496.91
09/30/2025 Toshiba -84.00
09/30/2025 Elan Financial Services -2,668.40
09/30/2025 ULINE -129.99
09/30/2025 Brodart Co- JUV -1,102.81
09/30/2025 RCLS -178.67
09/30/2025 Elizabeth Fisher -7.63
09/30/2025 Brodart Co.- McN -610.75
09/30/2025 West Nyack Free Library -2.00
09/30/2025 Ingram Library Services -925.94
09/30/2025 Richard P. Feingold -250.00
09/30/2025 Julie Bengyak -400.00
09/30/2025 Charlotte Dunaief -43.40
09/30/2025 People -137.00
09/30/2025 Overdrive Inc -3,065.05
09/30/2025 Reader’s Digest -24.00
09/30/2025 Nyack Library -24.00
09/30/2025 Staples -672.97
09/30/2025 Patricia Rovello -49.00
09/30/2025 Cengage Learning Inc/Gale -65.99
09/30/2025 Womans Day -24.97
09/30/2025 Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corp -51.16
09/30/2025 Thrall Public Library of Middletown & Wallkill -26.00
09/30/2025 Blackstone Publishing -82.90
09/30/2025 Harper's Magazine -22.97
09/30/2025 Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corp -1,616.66



Cornwall Public Library

Warrant #3
September 2025
DATE NAME AMOUNT
09/30/2025 hoopla -1,381.97
09/30/2025 Belsito Communications, Inc -80.00

Total for 1001 General Fund (7848) - 3 - 2 $-98,642.19




RAMAPO

CATSKILL
LIBRARY

SYSTEM

September 12, 2025

Dear Member Library Board Presidents and Directors:

I'm pleased to share that the RCLS Board of Trustees approved the 2026 Operating
Budget on August 19, 2025, with a 0% increase to the RCLS Service Fee—a significant
achievement given the ongoing uncertainty surrounding State Aid for New York libraries
in 2026.

For the past five years, RCLS has successfully shielded member libraries from rising
operational costs by strategically utilizing unallocated funds and leveraging the favorable
interest rate secured in 2024 through NYLAF, now known as NYCLASS.

As part of the 2026 budget, $176,400 will be transferred from the ILS Capital Fund to
offset ILS operating costs, in accordance with the ILS Agreement with member libraries.
This year also marks the second year of our ILS contract with ByWater Solutions, which
continues with 0% increase in license costs, reinforcing our commitment to minimizing
the impact of State Aid unpredictability on member libraries.

Recognizing the broader fiscal challenges facing New York State — including increased
demands on social services and healthcare due to federal funding cuts — RCLS has
proactively planned for a 10% reduction in State Aid. This equates to a $212,200 loss in
revenue for RCLS operations and an $83,500 decrease in funding for member libraries.

To maintain financial stability, contributions to the following RCLS capital funds have
been suspended for 2026:

o RCLS Delivery Vehicle Capital Fund: $15,000

o RCLS Building Improvement Capital Fund: $35,000

o ILS Capital Fund: $33,200
Despite these challenges, RCLS remains committed to supporting member libraries. In
2026, we will continue to offer professional development opportunities for staff and
trustees. Our Government Relations Specialist will also maintain close collaboration with

State and Federal officials to advocate for libraries and mitigate the effects of potential
funding cuts.

619 Route 17M, Middletown, NY 10940 845.243.3747 WWW.rcls.org



2026 also marks the third year of RCLS's sustainability initiative, which supports member
libraries in achieving their goals and celebrates their successes through RCLS social media
campaigns.

The 2025 RCLS Road Trip once again demonstrates its value by drawing visitors to
member libraries, reminding communities of the wide range of services and programs
available—far beyond just books.

The RCLS Fiscal Officer, Stephen Hoefer, and I would like to invite all member library
Trustees and Directors to participate in one of the scheduled budget discussions. We
hope these discussions will be mutually beneficial and informative to everyone. Please
note that registration for attendance at the Budget Discussions is required to ensure that
a link to the virtual conversation is provided to you via email at least one day prior to the
scheduled date.

The scheduled dates are:

Budget Discussion - Wednesday, September 17, 2025 (6:30PM — 7:30PM)
Budget Discussion - Thursday, September 25, 2025 (10:00AM — 11:00AM)

Finally, please find the following essential documents included with this letter for your
review.

1. 2026 General & ILS Budgets, plus 2026 RCLS Service Fee

2. 2026 Budget Highlights Reference Guide

3. 2026 ILS Services Support Cost (displaying each member’s ILS Service Support
contribution)

4. 2026 Budget Voting Ballot (due by Friday, November 21, 2025)

If you have any questions, please don't hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

Grace Riowio-

Grace Riario
Executive Director



Printed 8/25/2025
RAMAPO Ramapo Catskill Library System
RCLS | Cerary 2026 General and ILS Budgets

SYSTEM 08/19/25 RCLS Board Approved
I 2025 BUDGET 2026 BUDGET $ Change % Change
ncome GENERAL ILS TOTAL GENERAL ILS TOTAL GENERAL ILS TOTAL GENERAL ILS TOTAL
NYS Aid Library Systems $ 2,124,200 | $ - $ 2,124,200 | $ 1,912,000 | $ - $ 1,912,000 $  (212,200) $ - |'$  (212,200)] -10% - -10%
NYS Aid Member Libraries 770,500 - 770,500 693,600 - 693,600 (76,900) - (76,9000  -10% - -10%
NYS Aid Other Agencies 66,700 - 66,700 60,100 - 60,100 (6,600) - (6,600)] -10% - -10%
ILS Services Support - 625,400 625,400 - 625,400 625,400 - - - - - -
Goods & Services 323,300 1,600 324,900 299,600 1,600 301,200 (23,700) - (23,700) -7% - -7%
RCLS Service Fee 127,800 - 127,800 127,800 - 127,800 - - - - - -
NYLA Advocacy & Donations 2,500 - 2,500 2,500 - 2,500 - - - - - -
Interest 116,500 2,000 118,500 127,500 1,600 129,100 11,000 (400) 10,600 9% -20% 9%
E-Rate Funding - 8,000 8,000 - - - - (8,000) (8,000) - -100% -100%
Transfer from General Fund Balance 209,000 - 209,000 125,000 - 125,000 (84,000) - (84,000)] -40% - -40%
Transfer from ILS Capital Fund - - - - 176,400 176,400 - 176,400 176,400 - 100% 100%
Total Income | $ 3,740,500 | $ 637,000 $ 4,377,500 | $ 3,348,100 $ 805,000  $ 4,153,100 $ (392,400)| $ 168,000 | $ (224,400)] -10% 26% -5%
Expense
Payroll Expenses $ 1,415,400 | $ 235,800 | $ 1,651,200 | $ 1,359,600 | $ 368,000 | $ 1,727,600 $ (55,800)| $ 132,200 | $ 76,400 -4% 56% 5%
Employee Benefits 781,100 116,500 897,600 749,200 181,900 931,100 (31,900) 65,400 33,500 -4% 56% 4%
Equipment, Furniture & Fixtures - - - - - = - - - - - -
Vehicle Purchase/Lease 3,900 - 3,900 3,900 - 3,900 - - - - - -
Library Materials 346,000 100 346,100 311,600 100 311,700 (34,400) - (34,400)] -10% - -10%
Office Supplies 21,600 1,700 23,300 12,700 1,300 14,000 (8,900) (400) 9,300)] -41% -24% -40%
Telecommunications 1,500 10,500 12,000 2,000 2,100 4,100 500 (8,400) (7,900)] 33% -80% -66%
Postage 1,400 - 1,400 1,400 - 1,400 - - - - -
Marketing & Promotion 15,900 - 15,900 16,100 - 16,100 200 - 200 1% - 1%
Advocacy Costs 19,700 - 19,700 17,200 - 17,200 (2,500) - 2,500 -13% - -13%
Travel 39,900 6,900 46,800 33,900 1,800 35,700 (6,000) (5,100) (11,100)| -15% -74% -24%
Contracts with Libraries 321,800 - 321,800 298,100 - 298,100 (23,700) - (23,700)] 7% - 7%
Professional Fees 89,500 1,700 91,200 42,600 1,700 44,300 (46,900) - (46,900)] -52% - -51%
Continuing Ed - RCLS Staff 1,500 5,400 6,900 1,500 - 1,500 - (5,400) (5,400) - -100% -78%
RCLS Programs 38,200 - 38,200 29,400 - 29,400 (8,800) - (8,800)] -23% - -23%
Membership Dues 6,300 - 6,300 7,200 - 7,200 900 - 900 14% - 14%
Software/Hardware Maint. & Subs 71,300 211,800 283,100 41,600 210,200 251,800 (29,700) (1,600) (31,300)] -42% -1% -11%
Cataloging Tools 43,000 - 43,000 - 23,000 23,000 (43,000) 23,000 (20,000)] -100% 100% -47%
Building Repairs & Maint 108,700 13,400 122,100 114,400 14,900 129,300 5,700 1,500 7,200 5% 11% 6%
Vehicle Maint. & Operation 44,800 - 44,800 44,800 - 44,800 - - - - - -
NYS Aid 319,000 - 319,000 260,900 - 260,900 (58,100) - (58,100) -18% - -18%
Transfers To Other Funds 50,000 33,200 83,200 - - = (50,000) (33,200) (83,200)] -100% -100% -100%
Total Expense | $ 3,740,500 | $ 637,000 $ 4,377,500 | $ 3,348,100 $ 805,000  $ 4,153,100 $ (392,400)| $ 168,000 | $ (224,400)] -10% 26% -5%
Net Activity $ - |3 - |3 - 13 - |3 - $ -

Page 1 of 2



Printed 8/25/2025

RAMAPO Ramapo Catskill Library System
CATSKILL -
RCLS LIBRARY 2026 RCLS Services Fee - 0% Increase for the Fifth Year
SYSTEM 08/19/25 RCLS Board Approved
) Minimum Population % of Fee Based Deb:(;i:vice Exp:.?;:ures % of Fee Based TOTAL S:xiziefe ) Total Ch:nge Ch:/:ge
Library Name Fee Annua_l Report Total_ on Annual Report Altgn;:ll Rep;r:) X Tot?l on 2026 Total Library 2025 From From
Question 1.24 (Population| Population Question 12.31 QSer.viceeS:Z.;l Expenditures | Expenditures FEE Expenditures Fee 2025 2025
Albert Wisner Public Library $ 1,250 23,453 3.03% $ 1,066 (| $ - $ 1,662,075 2.34% $ 822 $ 3,139 0.19% WAR $ 3,100 | $ 39 1%
Blauvelt Free Library 1,250 5,548 0.72% 252 - 815,678 1.15% 404 1,906 0.23% BLV 2,027 (121)| 6%
Chester Public Library 1,250 12,646 1.64% 575 - 675,356 0.95% 334 2,159 0.32% CHS 2,118 41 2%
Cornwall Public Library 1,250 17,395 2.25% 791 - 1,190,117 1.68% 589 2,630 0.22% COR 2,614 16 1%
Cragsmoor Free Library 1,250 433 0.06% 20 - 142,863 0.20% 71 1,340 0.94% CRG 1,323 17 1%
Daniel Pierce Library 1,250 6,070 0.79% 276 - 576,802 0.81% 285 1,811 0.31% GRH 1,803 8 0%
Ellenville Public Library and Museum 1,250 12,454 1.61% 566 - 761,513 1.07% 377 2,193 0.29% EPL 2,189 4 0%
Ethelbert B. Crawford Public Library 1,250 19,614 2.54% 892 356,663 1,542,329 2.17% 763 2,905 0.19% MTC 2,673 232 9%
Fallsburg Library 1,250 12,045 1.56% 548 - 291,758 0.41% 144 1,942 0.67% FBR 1,938 4 0%
Finkelstein Memorial Library 1,250 135,449 17.52% 6,159 - 8,584,358 12.08% 4,248 11,657 0.14% FML 11,629 28 0%
Florida Public Library 1,250 5,132 0.66% 233 - 463,209 0.65% 229 1,713 0.37% FPL 1,721 (8) 0%
Gardiner Library 1,250 5,610 0.73% 255 56,179 423,147 0.60% 209 1,714 0.41% GAR 1,703 11 1%
Goshen Public Library And Historical Society 1,250 19,260 2.49% 876 493,094 2,374,104 3.34% 1,175 3,301 0.14% GOS 3,062 239 8%
Greenwood Lake Public Library 1,250 5,920 0.77% 269 - 789,703 1.11% 391 1,910 0.24% GRL 1,988 (78) -4%
Haverstraw Kings Daughters Public Library 1,250 34,360 4.44% 1,562 624,172 6,522,954 9.18% 3,228 6,040 0.09% HAV 5,695 345 6%
Highland Falls Library 1,250 3,684 0.48% 168 - 304,574 0.43% 151 1,568 0.51% HFL 1,567 1 0%
Josephine-Louise Public Library 1,250 6,818 0.88% 310 - 630,238 0.89% 312 1,872 0.30% WAL 1,849 23 1%
Liberty Public Library 1,250 10,626 1.37% 483 151,050 473,347 0.67% 234 1,967 0.42% LIB 1,892 75 4%
Livingston Manor - Roscoe Library 1,250 5,070 0.66% 231 - 380,855 0.54% 188 1,669 0.44% LIV/ROS 2,924 (1,255)] -43%
Mamakating Library District 1,250 10,718 1.39% 487 26,200 362,836 0.51% 180 1,917 0.53% MAM 1,914 3 0%
Moffat Library Of Washingtonville 1,250 25,789 3.34% 1,173 623,750 2,111,862 2.97% 1,045 3,468 0.16% WAS 3,127 341 11%
Monroe Free Library 1,250 21,387 2.77% 972 90,553 1,443,423 2.03% 714 2,937 0.20% MFL 2,901 36 1%
Montgomery Free Library 1,250 3,834 0.50% 174 - 111,431 0.16% 55 1,479 1.33% MNG 1,466 13 1%
Nanuet Public Library 1,250 14,199 1.84% 646 - 2,912,122 4.10% 1,441 3,337 0.11% NAN 3,323 14 0%
New City Free Library 1,250 46,916 6.07% 2,133 657,184 5,093,071 7.17% 2,520 5,903 0.12% NWC 5,366 537 10%
Newburgh Free Library 1,250 68,215 8.82% 3,102 - 5,359,695 7.55% 2,652 7,004 0.13% NFL 7,134 (130) -2%
Nyack Library 1,250 14,148 1.83% 643 435,887 3,072,634 4.33% 1,520 3,414 0.11% NYK 3,322 92 3%
Orangeburg Library 1,250 4,565 0.59% 208 - 677,432 0.95% 335 1,793 0.26% ORG 1,801 (8) 0%
Palisades Free Library 1,250 810 0.10% 37 - 543,647 0.77% 269 1,556 0.29% PAL 1,556 - 0%
Pearl River Public Library 1,250 15,574 2.01% 708 - 3,164,316 4.45% 1,566 3,524 0.11% PRL 3,698 (174) -5%
Piermont Library District 1,250 2,517 0.33% 114 - 409,567 0.58% 203 1,567 0.38% PMT 1,576 (9) -1%
Pine Bush Area Public Library District 1,250 14,571 1.88% 663 26,778 349,164 0.49% 173 2,085 0.60% PBL 2,062 23 1%
Port Jervis Free Library 1,250 17,073 2.21% 776 - 1,020,937 1.44% 505 2,532 0.25% PTJ 2,524 8 0%
Rose Memorial Library Association 1,250 14,813 1.92% 674 - 776,117 1.09% 384 2,308 0.30% STP 2,236 72 3%
Sloatsburg Public Library 1,250 3,036 0.39% 138 - 477,071 0.67% 236 1,624 0.34% SLO 1,627 3) 0%
Suffern Free Library 1,250 30,869 3.99% 1,404 414,419 3,036,510 4.27% 1,503 4,156 0.14% SUF 3,949 207 5%
Sunshine Hall Free Library 1,250 2,196 0.28% 100 - 92,815 0.13% 46 1,396 1.50% ELD 1,389 7 1%
Tappan Library 1,250 6,673 0.86% 303 - 866,191 1.22% 429 1,982 0.23% TAP 1,971 11 1%
Thrall Public Library District of Middletown | 1,250 59,174 7.65% 2,691 - 3,885,511 5.47% 1,923 5,863 0.15% MID 5,959 (96) -2%
Tomkins Cove Public Library 1,250 1,841 0.24% 84 - 207,356 0.29% 103 1,436 0.69% TCL 1,435 1 0%
Tuxedo Park Library 1,250 3,811 0.49% 173 - 659,560 0.93% 326 1,750 0.27% TUX 1,755 (5) 0%
Valley Cottage Free Library 1,250 9,038 1.17% 411 - 2,422,617 3.41% 1,199 2,860 0.12% VCL 2,941 81| -3%
Wallkill Public Library 1,250 8,036 1.04% 365 - 330,920 0.47% 164 1,779 0.54% WAK 1,787 (8) 0%
West Nyack Free Library 1,250 9,655 1.25% 439 - 1,376,929 1.94% 681 2,370 0.17% WNY 2,354 16 1%
Western Sullivan Public Library 1,250 9,794 1.27% 445 - 951,001 1.34% 471 2,166 0.23% WSPL 2,173 @ 0%
Woodbury Public Library 1,250 12,197 1.58% 555 - 714,804 1.01% 354 2,158 0.30% CVL 2,126 32 2%
TOTALS $ 57,500 773,036 $ 35150 || $ 3,955,929 | $ 71,034,519 $ 35,150 $ 127,800 0.18% $ 127,800 | $ - 0%
Same as 2025

Page 2 of 2



RAMAPO

CATSKILL
LIBRARY

SYSTEM

2026 RCLS Budget Highlights

Reference Guide
08/19/25

The 5 most interesting things about the 2026 RCLS Budget

. This is the fifth year in a row that the RCLS Board of Trustees has approved a
budget with no increase to the RCLS Service Fee. To accomplish this 0% increase,
a total of $125,000 from the RCLS Unallocated Fund Balance is utilized to balance
the General budget.

. Theincrease in 2026 ILS Services Support is $0 due to the Transfer from ILS Capital
Fund of $176,400 to offset costs as per the ILS Agreement.

. RCLS is budgeting for a 10% decrease in State Aid because of the federal cuts to
NYS.

. Contributions to the RCLS Delivery Vehicle Capital Fund of $15,000, to the RCLS
Building Improvement Capital Fund of $35,000, and the ILS Capital fund of $33,200
have been suspended for 2026.

. ILS Payroll Expenses and Employee Benefits have increased to cover the cost of
two full-time Catalogers and the associated benefits, one with an MLS and the other
with 18 years’ experience cataloging for member libraries. One part-time cataloger
remains in the RCLS General Budget.



REFERENCE GUIDE: 2026 BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS

Use of RCLS & ILS RCLS Service Interest Income
Fund Balance Fee /_ 3%
8% 3%

Sales of Goods
70

ILS Servi
Suppo
15% r
ILS Services Support 625,400
Sales of Goods & Services 301,200
Use of RCLS & ILS Fund Balance 301,400
RCLS Service Fee 127,800
Interest Income 129,100
Other Revenue 2,500
TOTAL REVENUE $ 4,153,100
Contracts with Overhead Automotive

Libraries 6% 1%
7%0

Library Materi

Salary & Benefits $ 2,658,700
Dues & Fees 303,300

Library Materials 311,700

Overhead 242,300

Transfer to Reserves -
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS $ 4,153,100

Page 2 of 8 Printed 8/25/2025



REFERENCE GUIDE: 2026 BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS
INCOME

NYS STATE AID

New Yorkers reply on federal funding for a great deal of facets that support their daily lives -
paving the highways, bolstering the schools, and putting food on the table are just some areas
federal funding touches. In the State Fiscal Year 2025 budget, federal receipts totaled $96 billion,
39% of receipts in the budget, Medicaid at $57 billion represents 59% of federal funds and
dwarves all other major grants and revenues, per the Office of the New York State Comptroller.

Federal funding pays for New York State (NYS) workers to carry out essential activities, such as
administration of major benefits programs like Unemployment Insurance and the Supplemental
Nutrition Assistance Program; provision of services like workforce training and in-home care for
older New Yorkers; and prevention of fraud in use of Medicaid in other funds. A total of 43%
of the NYS Department of Education’s employees have been covered annually by federal funds.

The proposed 25/26 federal budget includes deep cuts to Medicaid spending, as well as many
other programs cuts or the complete elimination of services. One such program that has been
eliminated is the Institute of Museum and Library Services - an independent federal agency
whose Grants to State program provided over $8 million annually to the NYS Library. Per the
Fiscal Policy Institute, New York will lose ($15.4) billion per year under the federal budget.

Amid significant uncertainty and looming federal cuts, the NYS 25/26 budget prioritized
affordability and shields New Yorks from federal threats; however, New York is limited in its
capacity to contribute more financial support to the federal government than it receives in return,
and in its ability to adjust the state budget to compensate for the loss of federal funding. It is
for these reasons the 25/26 NYS budget has granted the Governor expanded authority to
implement mid-year budget cuts in response to financial challenges.

The 2026 RCLS budget acknowledges these challenges by planning for a 10% reduction in State
Aid to RCLS, which equates to a ($212,200) loss in revenue for RCLS operations and ($83,500)
loss in revenue that supports member libraries.

Page 3 of 8 Printed 8/25/2025


https://www.osc.ny.gov/reports/budget/fed-funding-ny/federal-receipts

REFERENCE GUIDE: 2026 BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS
INCOME

ILS SERVICES SUPPORT

The increase in 2026 ILS Services Support is $0 due to the Transfer from ILS Capital Fund of
$176,400 to offset costs as per the ILS Agreement.

ILS Services Support Costs - Schedule B provides detailed information, per library, based on the
ILS Support formula. This formula considers a 3-year average of circulation and holdings, and a
minimum support amount. The 2024 State Annual Report introduced several revisions that
impacted the three-year averages in the formulate to calculate the ILS Services Support Costs.

GOODS & SERVICES

This line consists of estimated revenue for services and pass-through purchases with member
libraries, such as: System-Wide E-Content Pool at $206,800; Consumer Report Pool at $39,500;
movie licensing at $16,500, MS365 email subscriptions at $20,000; etc. This is where the
purchasing power of the consortium provides outstanding returns on public dollars for member
libraries. The offsetting expense code is Contracts with Libraries.

ILS Goods & Services consists of $1,600 for PayPal funds collected to offset PayPal Fees.

RCLS SERVICE FEE

This is the fifth year in a row that RCLS Board of Trustees has approved a budget with no
increase to the RCLS Service Fee.

INTEREST INCOME

RCLS continues to enjoy investments with NYLAF, now merged with NYCLASS, and is expected
to result in a $11,000 increase in the General Budget.

E-RATE FUNDING

RCLS switched from an annual reimbursement process to a monthly discounted invoice. E-Rate
Funding as a discount is a non-cash item and therefore has been removed from the cash-based
budget. The E-Rate funding will be recognized with the year-end accounting accruals.

TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE

The RCLS Board of Trustees approved the use of $125,000 from the RCLS General Fund to
support the services provided to member libraries.

Page 4 of 8 Printed 8/25/2025



REFERENCE GUIDE: 2026 BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS

EXPENSES

PAYROLL EXPENSES

The table below details the Payroll allocation for General and ILS Services. RCLS has a total of
26 Full-Time Equivalents (FTE): 16.9 FTE are General, and 4.6 FTE are ILS Services.

This method of allocation allows ILS Services to utilize highly qualified and trained RCLS
employees on a pro-rated basis. For example, it takes a combination of eight specialized
employees to equal the 4.6 ILS FTEs.

Job Title General ILS Services

Executive Director 95% 0%
Chief Financial Officer 80% 10%
Asst. Fiscal Officer 30% 25%
Software Analyst and Admin. 5% 95%
Software Support Specialist 10% 70%
IT Manager and Network Admin. 18% 25%
Assistant Network Administrator 3% 30%
Cataloger Consultant 0% 100%
ILL/Technical Services Specialist 0% 100%

% of Total Payroll 64% 17%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Benefits are budgeted to increase 4% or $33,500 overall. Benefits are allocated to General and
ILS Services based on the percentage of total Payroll for each.

HOSPITALIZATION

The New York State Health Insurance Plan (NYSHIP) is budgeted to increase by 5% or
$17,600; however, retiree health insurance is reduced by ($9,800) for a net increase of
$7,800.

RETIREMENT

The RCLS employer contribution to the NYS Retirement System is budgeted to increase 4%
or $16,300.

EQUIPMENT, FURNITURE & FIXTURES
There are no equipment, furniture or fixture purchases planned for this year.

Page 5 of 8 Printed 8/25/2025



REFERENCE GUIDE: 2026 BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS
EXPENSES

VEHICLE PURCHASE/LEASE
Annual cost to lease an all-electric Chevy Bolt.

LIBRARY MATERIALS

Central Library Service Aid (CLSA) from NYS is budgeted at $310,100 and supports library
services and the purchase of eligible library materials. RCLS and the Central Library, Newburgh
Free Library, have committed $30,000 towards a mobile app. replacement.

OFFICE SUPPLIES

Included in this line are typical office supplies, plus PCs, laptops, and equipment. The overall
budget has decreased by ($8,900) because in 2025, RCLS replaced PCs and Laptops at RCLS
HQ that were not upgradable to Windows 11.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS

The General budget line has increased by $500 to cover the cost of an in-house hotspot and
Gov. Relations Specialist cell phone.

The ($8,000) reduction in Telecommunications is because RCLS is now receiving E-Rate
discounted invoices for Telecommunications, rather than paying the full invoice and receiving a
rebate the following year. The telephone bill has also been reduced further as robo-calls are no
longer via the RCLS phones.

TRAVEL

The Travel budget is for RCLS Staff to attend various conferences such as the New York Library
Association (NYLA) conference, ALA conferences, YSS conference, etc., and has been reduced
by ($6,000) on the General side.

ILS Travel has been reduced by ($5,100) and only includes the Software Analyst &
Administrators’ attendance at the annual Koha Conference.

CONTRACTS WITH LIBRARIES

This line offsets estimated revenue for services and pass-through purchases with member
libraries, such as: System-Wide E-Content Pool at $206,800; Consumer Report Pool at $39,500;
movie licensing at $16,500, MS365 email subscriptions at $20,000; etc. This is where the
purchasing power of the consortium provides outstanding returns on public dollars for member
libraries. This line has decreased by ($23,700) mostly due to dropping the Tutor.com
subscription.

Page 6 of 8 Printed 8/25/2025



REFERENCE GUIDE: 2026 BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS
EXPENSES

PROFESSIONAL FEES

Included in this line are payroll processing fees, general purpose attorney, PayPal Fees and CPA
audit costs. The ($43,900) reduction is a result of the Plan of Service focus group consultant
and Public Relations Project being completed in 2025.

CONTINUING ED — RCLS Staff

The ILS budget decreased by ($5,400) as there is no SQL Data Science online course or
additional training for the ILS Software Analyst & Administrator this year.

RCLS PROGRAMS

The ($8,800) decrease is due to a reduction in Adult, Youth & IT continuing education, and the
elimination of Archival Grants to member libraries.

SOFTWARE/HARDWARE MAINT. & SUBS

This includes hardware and software support, both annual contracts and multi-year contracts.
The General side shows a ($29,700) decrease because $30,000 to develop the RCLS Go App.
has been removed.

The ILS $210,200 Budget has decreased by ($1,600). The budgeted amount includes the
Bywater and ASPEN contract budgeted at $146,000, EBSCO Discover Services at $20,900,
Message Bee services at $18,000, development of the Koha software at $10,000, RCLS IT
Services Support at $4,000, Twilio robo-calls at $3,000, and a $6,000 (reduced by $4,000)
buffer.

CATALOGING TOOLS

RCLS had been covering these costs for decades and with the anticipated loss of State Aid,
Cataloging Tools have been shifted to the ILS budget. The General budget has decreased by
($43,000) due to shifting $23,000 to the ILS budget, removing the EDI consulting and editing
services at ($38,000) and eliminating two subscriptions.

BUILDING REPAIRS & MAINT

FUELS AND UTILITIES

In April 2025, Orange & Rockland Utilities announced a 10.9% increase in gas and a 4.6%
increase in electricity. January 2026 there will be a 3.5% increase in gas and 3.3%
increase in electricity. The RCLS third-party electricity supply contract ends 12/31/25 and
so in 2026, RCLS is budgeting for a 15% overall increase in utilities, which amounts to
an increase of $3,200 on the General budget and $1,200 on the ILS budget.

Page 7 of 8 Printed 8/25/2025



REFERENCE GUIDE: 2026 BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS

EXPENSES

OTHER OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

Includes the following: insurance, trash removal, cleaning the building, groundskeeping,
snow plowing and sanding, fire extinguisher maintenance, septic cleaning, fire and
burglar alarm protection and other miscellaneous items. There is a $300 increase on the
General budget.

Insurance costs on the General side have increased by $2,300, and by $300 for the ILS.

REPAIRS TO BUILDING
The Repairs to Building budget remains unchanged at $8,000.

NYS Aid

The ($58,100) decrease represents a 10% loss in Coordinated Outreach Funds and State
Correctional Facilities.

TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS

The ($50,000) decrease on the General side reflects a one-year suspension on transfers of
($35,000) to the RCLS Building Improvement Capital Fund and ($15,000) to the RCLS Delivery
Vehicle Fund.

The transfer to ILS Capital Fund has been reduced from ($33,200) to $0 for 2026.

Page 8 of 8 Printed 8/25/2025



Printed 8/25/2025

RAMAPO RAMAPO CATSKILL LIBRARY SYSTEM
RCLS ‘ gy 2026 ILS Services Support Costs - Schedule B
SYSTEM 07/17/25 ILS Committee Approved
08/13/25 Director's Association Approved
Total ILS Support Formula (A + (C + D = E) + F)= ILS Support 1
.. : : _3-Yea_r R 2026 $ % Minimum Support Amount
Library Name Support | | mversge | Average | Cirulation | SR Total LS | uibrary| | ‘Service | Increase | increase based on Column €
. . o + Holdings (Decrease) | (Decrease) 3-Year Circulation + Holdings
Amount Circulation | Holdings Usage Support Support Support | ¢ om 2024 | from 2024 Usage
Albert Wisner Public Library $ 1,750 209,935 123,175 333,110 | $ 20,100 $ 21,850 WAR $ 20,330 | $ 1,520 7% 25,000 - 49,999 $ 250
Blauvelt Free Library 1,250 43,283 83,562 126,845 7,650 8,900 BLV 9,210 (310) -3% 50,000 - 99,999 750
Chester Public Library 1,250 58,115 99,128 157,244 9,490 10,740 CHS 10,880 (140) -1% 100,000 - 199,999 1,250
Cornwall Public Library 1,750 156,193 123,629 279,822 16,880 18,630 COR 18,050 580 3% 200,000 - 349,999 1,750
Cragsmoor Free Library 750 3,449 57,265 60,714 3,660 4,410 CRG 5,100 (690) -14% 350,000 - 499,999 2,500
Daniel Pierce Library 1,250 35,951 87,880 123,831 7,470 8,720 GRH 8,940 (220) -2% 500,000 - 649,999 3,250
Ellenville Public Library and Museum 1,250 38,351 108,093 146,444 8,830 10,080 EPL 10,180 (100) -1% 650,000 - 849,999 4,000
Ethelbert B. Crawford Public Library 1,250 57,019 87,081 144,100 8,690 9,940 MTC 10,060 (120) -1% 850,000 - 1,049,999 4,500
Fallsburg Library 750 18,022 73,415 91,437 5,520 6,270 | rer 6,730 @0l 7% 1,050,000 - 1,299,999 5,000
Finkelstein Memorial Library 4,000 645,872 302,353 948,225 57,210 61,210 FML 55,560 5,650 10%
Florida Public Library 1,250 29,549 78,793 108,342 6,540 7,790 FPL 8,100 (310) -4%
Gardiner Library 1,250 51,843 68,578 120,421 7,260 8,510 GAR 8,630 (120) -1%
Goshen Public Library And Historical Society 1,750 131,109 142,242 273,350 16,490 18,240 GOS 18,780 (540) -3%
Greenwood Lake Public Library 1,250 34,543 105,940 140,483 8,480 9,730 GRL 9,920 (190) -2%
Haverstraw Kings Daughters Public Library 2,500 203,389 206,109 409,497 24,700 27,200 HAV 24,820 2,380 10%
Highland Falls Library 1,250 34,153 81,530 115,684 6,980 8,230 | Hr 8,500 oo 3% ILS Support Costs have
Josephine-Louise Public Library 1,250 45,850 86,781 132,632 8,000 9,250 | waL 9,260 | o% Increased by $0. The
Liberty Public Library 750 28,241 73,073 101,315 6,110 6,860 | LB 7,220 (360) -5% Increase/Decrease in cost is
Livingston Manor-Roscoe Library 1,250 13,522 122,760 136,282 8,220 9,470 | L1v/ROS 10,950 (1,480) -14% soly related to the change in
Mamakating Library District 750 33,806 67,913 101,719 6,140 6,890 MAM 7,290 (400) -5% 3-Year Average Circulation
Moffat Library Of Washingtonville 1,250 106,181 91,330 197,510 11,920 13,170 WAS 12,710 460 4% and 3-Year Average in
Monroe Free Library 1,750 107,550 | 106,975 | _ 214,525 12,940 14,690 | L 14,750 6 0% Holdings.
Montgomery Free Library 750 19,691 72,551 92,242 5,560 6,310 MNG 6,730 (420) -6%
Nanuet Public Library 1,750 147,647 165,853 313,500 18,910 20,660 NAN 19,590 1,070 5%
New City Free Library 3,250 280,181 167,099 447,280 26,980 30,230 NWC 33,340 (3,110) -9%
Newburgh Free Library 2,500 199,397 215,005 414,402 25,000 27,500 NFL 26,270 1,230 5%
Nyack Library 1,750 139,465 162,600 302,065 18,220 19,970 NYK 18,980 990 5%
Orangeburg Library 1,250 38,637 96,508 135,145 8,150 9,400 ORG 9,690 (290) -3%
Palisades Free Library 750 22,204 71,372 93,576 5,650 6,400 PAL 6,900 (500) -7%
Pearl River Public Library 1,750 118,074 107,063 225,137 13,580 15,330 PRL 15,230 100 1%
Piermont Library District 750 16,689 60,773 77,463 4,670 5,420 PMT 6,000 (580) -10%
Pine Bush Area Public Library District 1,250 44,812 74,393 119,205 7,190 8,440 PBL 8,740 (300) -3%
Port Jervis Free Library 1,250 62,685 93,969 156,654 9,450 10,700 PTJ 10,880 (180) -2%
Rose Memorial Library Association 1,250 37,410 76,692 114,102 6,880 8,130 STP 8,730 (600) -7%
Sloatsburg Public Library 1,250 25,418 92,823 118,241 7,130 8,380 SLO 8,660 (280) -3%
Suffern Free Library 2,500 241,119 173,784 414,904 25,030 27,530 SUF 26,830 700 3%
Sunshine Hall Free Library 750 14,400 70,488 84,887 5,120 5,870 ELD 6,480 (610) -9%
Tappan Library 1,250 61,071 80,825 141,896 8,560 9,830 TAP 10,480 (650) -6%
Thrall Public Library District of Middletown 2,500 150,044 269,951 419,995 25,340 27,840 MID 28,260 (420) -1%
Tomkins Cove Public Library 1,250 10,400 87,021 97,421 5,880 7,130 TCL 7,850 (720) -9%
Tuxedo Park Library 1,250 37,087 76,985 114,073 6,880 8,130 TUX 8,440 (310) -4%
Valley Cottage Free Library 1,750 128,489 164,612 293,101 17,680 19,430 VCL 18,580 850 5%
Wallkill Public Library 1,250 43,444 67,073 110,517 6,670 7,920 WAK 8,320 (400) -5%
West Nyack Free Library 1,250 82,827 96,289 179,116 10,810 12,060 WNY 12,240 (180) -1%
Western Sullivan Public Library 1,250 75,184 122,163 197,347 11,910 13,160 | wspL 13,170 (10) 0%
Woodbury Public Library 1,250 42,615 83,416 126,031 7,600 8,850 CVL 9,040 (190) -2%
TOTALS $ 67,250 4,124,917 5,126,917 9,251,833 | $ 558,130 $ 625,400 $ 625400 | $ - 0%

Page 1 of 2



RAMAPO

CATSKILL
LIBRARY

SYSTEM

RAMAPO CATSKILL LIBRARY SYSTEM

2026 ILS Service Support 3-Year Circulation and Holdings Average Calculation

07/17/25 ILS Committee Approved
08/13/25 Director's Association Approved

2022, 2023 & 2024 data is from the approved NY State Annual Reports (SAR)

Columns C & D carry-over to the Participant's ILS Service Support Costs - Schedule B

C The 2024 State Annual Report (SAR) introduced several significant revisions that impact this report. Prior to 2024, Q4.16 Total Collection Use (Circulation) included the number of Successful Retrievals of Electronic Information - Q4.13. However, the 2024 SAR
discontinued the collection of this metrics. The 2024 Collection Use is now calculated as follows: (Q4.11 Physical Item Circulation + E-Material Circulation: Q5.19 E-Books + Q5.20 E-Serials + Q5.21 E-Audio + Q5.22 E-Videos) = 2024 Collection Use.

D The 2024 SAR introduced modifications to the collection of holdings data as well. Quantities of electronic materials, including books, audio and video, are no longer recorded. Instead, the updated data point now in use is Q2.17: Total Physical Holdings.

C C D D 2 3
NYS Annual Report Question #s 2022 2023 2024 3-Year 2022 2023 2024 3-Year 2025 2025 2025 2025
Q4.16 Q4.16 Q4.11+(5.19 Average (Q2.25 |- Q2.19) = ) (Q2.25 - Q2.19) = ) Q2.17 Average Library Circ. Avg. % Avg. Holding %
. X ] ) . thru5.22) = ) ! . ) Holdings ) . Holdings Physical . Increase Increase Increase Increase
Library Name Circulation | Circulation | . ;nyse | Circulation Holdings Electronic Holdings Electronic Holdings Holdings (Decrease) | (Decrease) | (Decrease) | (Decrease)
Albert Wisner Public Library 195,292 209,342 225,172 209,935 351,391 225,231 126,160 412,331 238,106 174,225 69,140 123,175 | WAR 20,320 10% (17,700) -14%
Blauvelt Free Library 42,010 44,067 43,772 43,283 310,626 225,231 85,395 369,079 238,106 130,973 34,317 83,562 BLV 1,100 3% (15,928) -19%
Chester Public Library 56,473 58,192 59,681 58,115 325,650 225,231 100,419 382,575 238,106 144,469 52,497 99,128 CHS 1,235 2% (15,353) -15%
Cornwall Public Library 153,702 171,659 143,217 156,193 351,789 225,231 126,558 409,398 238,163 171,235 73,095 123,629 COR 7,067 5% (17,204) -14%
Cragsmoor Free Library 3,385 3,507 3,456 3,449 285,035 225,231 59,804 343,794 238,106 105,688 6,303 57,265 | CRGC 66 2% (16,775) -29%
Daniel Pierce Library 32,946 36,236 38,672 35,951 314,821 225,231 89,590 372,630 238,106 134,524 39,526 87,880 GRH 3,083 9% (16,002) -18%
Ellenville Public Library and Museum 37,597 39,414 38,042 38,351 333,058 225,231 107,827 393,464 238,106 155,358 61,095 108,093 EPL 2,555 7% (15,053) -14%
Ethelbert B. Crawford Public Library 51,855 58,973 60,228 57,019 314,194 225,231 88,963 371,296 238,106 133,190 39,091 87,081 MTC 3,482 6% (16,104) -18%
Fallsburg Library 17,960 18,236 17,869 18,022 300,111 225,231 74,880 403,538 283,106 120,432 24,934 73,415 FBR 1,243 7% (16,130) -22%
Finkelstein Memorial Library 619,518 665,542 652,556 645,872 535,120 225,231 309,889 592,664 238,106 354,558 242,613 302,353 FML 51,421 8% (20,341) -7%
Florida Public Library 28,223 29,302 31,123 29,549 305,218 225,231 79,987 364,504 238,106 126,398 29,993 78,793 FPL 2,168 7% (15,648) -20%
Gardiner Library 47,913 52,219 55,397 51,843 294,773 225,231 69,542 353,915 238,106 115,809 20,384 68,578 GAR 5,175 10% (16,124) -24%
Goshen Public Library And Historical Society 130,671 132,012 130,643 131,109 389,104 226,322 162,782 447,546 238,411 209,135 54,808 142,242 GOS 4,275 3% (33,952) -24%
Greenwood Lake Public Library 32,241 35,361 36,027 34,543 333,634 225,231 108,403 391,211 238,106 153,105 56,313 105,940 GRL 3,200 9% (17,013) -16%
Haverstraw Kings Daughters Public Library 175,965 209,617 224,584 203,389 432,006 225,231 206,775 500,296 238,106 262,190 149,361 206,109 | HAV 29,804 15% (17,377) -8%
Highland Falls Library 33,575 35,015 33,870 34,153 308,343 225,231 83,112 365,953 238,106 127,847 33,632 81,530 HFL 2,502 7% (15,703) -19%
Josephine-Louise Public Library 43,771 43,989 49,791 45,850 313,456 225,231 88,225 372,011 238,106 133,905 38,214 86,781 | WAL 5,657 12% (15,565) -18%
Liberty Public Library 28,226 28,189 28,309 28,241 300,599 225,231 75,368 358,165 238,106 120,059 23,793 73,073 LIB 2,610 9% (16,428) -22%
Livingston Manor-Roscoe Library 12,799 13,403 14,363 13,522 577,323 450,465 126,858 692,335 476,212 216,123 25,299 122,760 | LIV/ROS 371 3% (19,283) -16%
Mamakating Library District 28,091 38,724 34,603 33,806 295,681 225,231 70,450 352,597 238,106 114,491 18,799 67,913 MAM 1,883 6% (16,485) -24%
Moffat Library Of Washingtonville 100,848 105,949 111,745 106,181 318,281 225,231 93,050 376,401 238,106 138,295 42,644 91,330 | WAS 8,787 8% (15,066) -16%
Monroe Free Library 105,184 110,150 107,316 107,550 336,556 225,231 111,325 391,270 238,106 153,164 56,437 106,975 MFL 811 1% (17,558) -16%
Montgomery Free Library 18,566 19,820 20,688 19,691 299,098 225,231 73,867 357,231 238,106 119,125 24,660 72,551 | MNG 1,492 8% (15,615) -22%
Nanuet Public Library 134,230 154,149 154,563 147,647 398,863 225,231 173,632 453,488 238,106 215,382 108,545 165,853 NAN 18,040 12% (21,827) -13%
New City Free Library 328,372 238,354 273,817 280,181 411,551 225,231 186,320 431,452 238,106 193,346 121,632 167,099 | NwC (63,362) -23% (24,577) -15%
Newburgh Free Library 214,432 218,924 164,834 199,397 456,119 225,231 230,888 505,384 238,106 267,278 146,849 215,005 NFL 21,794 1% (30,144) -14%
Nyack Library 151,088 132,288 135,019 139,465 391,181 225,231 165,950 448,181 238,106 210,075 111,774 162,600 | NYK 12,488 9% (16,952) -10%
Orangeburg Library 40,122 38,169 37,620 38,637 323,566 225,231 98,335 380,612 238,106 142,506 48,682 96,508 ORG 252 1% (15,173) -16%
Palisades Free Library 23,640 22,294 20,677 22,204 298,490 225,231 73,259 356,018 238,106 117,912 22,945 71,372 PAL (466) -2% (15,342) -21%
Pearl River Public Library 110,576 120,034 123,611 118,074 339,639 225,231 114,408 396,694 238,106 158,588 48,193 107,063 PRL 7,304 6% (22,022) -21%
Piermont Library District 16,247 17,716 16,105 16,689 287,563 225,231 62,332 345,618 238,106 107,512 12,476 60,773 | PMT 762 5% (16,643) -27%
Pine Bush Area Public Library District 42,103 45,459 46,874 44,812 301,412 225,231 76,181 359,823 238,106 121,717 25,282 74,393 PBL 1,899 4% (15,899) -21%
Port Jervis Free Library 70,116 68,866 49,072 62,685 322,241 225,231 97,010 376,570 238,106 138,464 46,434 93,969 PT) 845 1% (15,470) -16%
Rose Memorial Library Association 36,816 37,299 38,115 37,410 307,959 225,231 82,728 360,471 238,106 122,365 24,983 76,692 STP (576) -2% (18,321) -24%
Sloatsburg Public Library 24,287 25,959 26,008 25,418 318,561 225,231 93,330 382,864 243,489 139,375 45,763 92,823 SLO 331 1% (14,054) -15%
Suffern Free Library 240,224 247,131 236,003 241,119 411,515 225,231 186,284 461,014 238,106 222,908 112,161 173,784 SUF 16,644 7% (34,545) -20%
Sunshine Hall Free Library 13,628 14,021 15,550 14,400 297,462 225,231 72,231 400,058 283,106 116,952 22,280 70,488 ELD 606 4% (17,571) -25%
Tappan Library 65,012 73,752 44,450 61,071 308,860 225,231 83,629 365,925 238,106 127,819 31,026 80,825 TAP (6,017) -10% (16,294) -20%
Thrall Public Library District of Middletown 146,383 163,079 140,669 150,044 500,807 225,884 274,923 559,080 238,106 320,974 213,957 269,951 MID (16,296) 1% (21,969) -8%
Tomkins Cove Public Library 13,952 10,098 7,149 10,400 314,690 225,231 89,459 373,020 238,106 134,914 36,691 87,021 TCL (2,562) -25% (17,388) -20%
Tuxedo Park Library 34,598 38,596 38,068 37,087 303,666 225,231 78,435 362,012 238,106 123,906 28,615 76,985 | TUX 1,880 5% (15,734) -20%
Valley Cottage Free Library 126,061 136,000 123,406 128,489 394,724 225,231 169,493 452,311 238,106 214,205 110,139 164,612 VCL 11,269 9% (17,572) -11%
Wallkill Public Library 41,926 47,477 40,929 43,444 294,567 225,231 69,336 350,610 238,106 112,504 19,379 67,073 | WAK 421 1% (15,658) -23%
West Nyack Free Library 80,801 89,063 78,617 82,827 326,630 225,231 101,399 380,127 238,106 142,021 45,448 96,289 WNY 1,910 2% (18,360) -19%
Western Sullivan Public Library 69,670 88,510 67,373 75,184 351,218 225,231 125,987 407,977 238,106 169,871 70,630 122,163 | WspPL 2,847 4% (17,582) -14%
Woodbury Public Library 37,402 45,745 44,699 42,615 310,488 225,231 85,257 369,467 238,106 131,361 33,630 83,416 CVL 4,037 9% (16,546) -20%
TOTALS 4,058,497 4,231,901 4,084,352 4,124,917 15,897,639 | 10,587,604 | 5,310,035 18,652,980 | 11,286,727 7,366,253 2,704,462 5,126,917 174,354 4% (834,051) -16%

Page 2 of 2




RAMAPO

CATSKILL
LIBRARY

SYSTEM

2026 Budget Ballot

The Board of Trustees of the

Library on this day of 2025 approved a

resolution to

accept

not to accept

the Ramapo Catskill Library System 2026 RCLS Budget.

Board President (signature)

Board President (zint)

Please return by 4 p.m.
Friday, November 21, 2025
to
Grace Riario, Executive Director
Ramapo Catskill Library System



CORNWALL
PUBLIC LIBRARY

Cornwall Public Library

July - September, 2025

Budget vs. Actuals: Budget_FY26_P&L - FY26 P&L

TOTAL
ACTUAL BUDGET % OF BUDGET
Revenue
4002 Local Public Funds 809,551.50 1,619,103.00 50.00 %
4082 Income 2,179.86 5,245.00 41.56 %
4401 Interest Income 935.00 500.00 187.00 %
4706 Friends of the Cornwall Public Library 1,982.34 13,500.00 14.68 %
4760 Grants/Other 10,000.00
4840 RCLS- LLSA 4,946.00 4,810.00 102.83 %
9999 Prior Year Grant Back Out 5,000.00
Total Revenue $819,594.70 $1,658,158.00 49.43 %
GROSS PROFIT $819,594.70 $1,658,158.00 49.43 %
Expenditures
6010 Retirement 82,827.00
6020 6020 NYS Disability Benenfits 2,500.00
6030.8 FICA/Medicare Expense 14,390.93 77,068.00 18.67 %
6060 Worker's Compensation 9,200.00
6090 Health Insurance 24,850.26 131,126.00 18.95 %
6141 Professional Library 48,318.15 285,908.00 16.90 %
6142 Clerical Salary 107,886.85 590,760.00 18.26 %
6143 Treasurer Salary 1,273.10 6,620.00 19.23 %
6144 Custodial Salary 5,706.50 40,736.00 14.01 %
7000 Grant Expenses Paid in Prior Year 0.00
7410 Books 14,099.24 68,468.00 20.59 %
7411 Movie License 700.00
7412 Video/Music/Books on Tape 8,741.87 41,490.00 21.07 %
7413 Serials/Reference 2,791.24 16,900.00 16.52 %
7430 Supplies 4,532.05 34,500.00 13.14 %
7431 Telephone 1,025.33 4,000.00 25.63 %
7432 Square Processing Fees 25.06 50.00 50.12 %
7433 Postage and Shipping 416.95 3,000.00 13.90 %
7434 Printing 7,500.00
7435 7435- Travel/Conference 379.94 4,036.00 9.41 %
7437 Professional Fees 4,433.75 45,075.00 9.84 %
7438 Dues 458.94 1,500.00 30.60 %
7450 Utilities/Fuel 5,432.36 40,999.00 13.25 %
7451 Custodial Supplies 627.04 3,500.00 17.92 %
7452 Repairs to Building 1,628.27 27,000.00 6.03 %
7454 Building Insurance 4,334.00 16,000.00 27.09 %
7455 RCLS 12,656.57 77,472.00 16.34 %
7469 Service Contracts 6,366.82 39,223.00 16.23 %
Total Expenditures $270,375.22 $1,658,158.00 16.31 %



Cornwall Public Library
Budget vs. Actuals: Budget_FY26_P&L - FY26 P&L

coaNm July - September, 2025

PUBLIC LIBRARY

TOTAL
ACTUAL BUDGET % OF BUDGET
NET OPERATING REVENUE $549,219.48 $0.00 0.00%
NET REVENUE $549,219.48 $0.00 0.00%




Strategic Planning Report

The Strategic Planning Com mittee met Monday, October 6, 2025.

The committee com pleted the goal: Develop key themes from allinput
received to date (by October). Draft themes are going to be analyzed for possible
draft goals in the coming month,and the committee will identify if any stakeholder
groups need additional outreach.



Closed Holidays:

Thursday, January 1
Friday, April 3

Sunday, April 5
Monday, May 25
Friday, June 19
Saturday, July 4
Monday, September 7
Thursday, November 26
Friday, November 27
Thursday, December 24
Friday, December 25
Thursday, December 31

Holiday Schedule 2026

New Year’s Day (CLOSED)

Good Friday (CLOSE at 1:00) %
Easter Sunday (CLOSED)
Memorial Day (CLOSED)
Juneteenth (CLOSED)
Independence Day (CLOSED)
Labor Day (CLOSED)
Thanksgiving Day (CLOSED)

Day after Thanksgiving (CLOSED)
Christmas Eve (CLOSED)
Christmas Day (CLOSED)

New Year’s Eve (CLOSE at 1:00) %

Open for the following Federal Holidays:

v/ Monday, January 19
v/ Monday, February 16
v/ Monday, October 12

Martin Luther King, Jr.’s Birthday
Washington'’s Birthday (Presidents Day)
Columbus Day Observance/Indigenous Peoples Day

v Wednesday, November 11 Veterans Day

2 Floating Holidays as per employee handbook, plus 1 for July 4

v/ 4 Comp holidays

Revised: October 1, 2025

Approved by Board of Trustees:



Holiday Schedule 2026-2027

Closed Holidays:

Saturday, July 4, 2026
Monday, September 7, 2026
Thursday, November 26, 2026
Friday, November 27, 2026
Thursday, December 24, 2026
Friday, December 25, 2026
Thursday, December 31, 2026
Friday, January 1, 2027
Friday, March 26, 2027
Sunday, March 28, 2027
Monday, May 31, 2027
Saturday, June 19, 2027

*Independence Day (CLOSED)
Labor Day (CLOSED)
Thanksgiving Day (CLOSED)

Day after Thanksgiving (CLOSED)
Christmas Eve (CLOSED)
Christmas Day (CLOSED)

New Year’s Eve (CLOSE at 1:00) %
New Year’s Day (CLOSED)

Good Friday (CLOSE at 1:00) %
Easter Sunday (CLOSED)
Memorial Day (CLOSED)
*Juneteenth (CLOSED)

Open for the following Federal Holidays:

v/ Monday, October 12, 2026

v Wednesday, November 11, 2026

v Monday, January 18, 2027
v Monday, February 15, 2027

Columbus Day Observance/Indigenous Peoples Day
Veterans Day

Martin Luther King, Jr.’s Birthday

Washington’s Birthday (Presidents Day)

2 Floating Holidays as per employee handbook, plus *2

v’ 4 Comp holidays

Revised October 1, 2025

Approved by Board of Trustees:



SEPTEMBER 2025: Director’s Report
Note: I was out sick September 10, 11 & 12

Personnel

e Planning to hold 1/2-day Staff development day on Sunday 11/16

Budget/Financial

e Looking at Envisionware replacement for when we are IT independent
e Will be purchasing an extended warranty for site sign
e Auditors were here 9/9

Programming

9/14 Opera: Falstaff :12

9/17 Great Decisions: Nato:10

9/18 Mystery Book Group: Thursday Murder Club: 9
9/22 Lee Rd 3™ grade visit: 16 C, 5 A & 9/2422C,6 A
Just Say Yes to Fruits & Veggies: 38

Building and Grounds

e While I was away, a sink in the ladies’ room was clogged, plumber called & fixed
e While [ was away a mystery pipe was draining into the Janitor’s closet sink

Monthly Statistics 2025 (Previous month in parentheses)

Registered Borrowers: 7109 (7,041); Direct Access/Circulation: 10,351 (10,894)
ILL Borrows: 1,882 (1,754) ILL Loans: 1,382 (1,538)

Item Count: 72,969 (72,897); Wi-Fi: 5,650 (6,306)

Libby (Overdrive) Checkouts: 3,953 (4001) Unique Users: 837 (832)

Number of Visits to the Library: 3,826 (5,673)

Meetings Attended: 9/2 Buildings, Grounds, Sustainability; 9/8 Friends; 9/8 Strategic Planning;

9/9 Dept. Heads; 9/10 Director’s Association (from home); 9/18 Finance Committee, 9/18 Board
Meeting; 9/21 Fall Festival; 9/23 Staff Meeting; 9/24 B, G & S; 9/30 Demo with Dept Heads for new
Computer reservation software, etc.

Webinar(s) Attended: 9/22 Assabet demo



Adult Programming & Outreach Projects: September 2025

Library Sponsored Programs:

Date Title of Program Attendance
9/8 —9/29/25 Creative Writers Group 36
(9/8—11, 9/15-9, 9/22-7, 9/29-9)
9/3-9/24/25) Cornwall Canasta Card Crusaders
(9/3-11, 9/10-10, 9/17-6, 9/24-16) 43
9/15/25 Color Yourself Calm 13
9/16/25 A Military History of the Junior ROTC 12
9/16/25 Retirement by Design 5
9/16 —9/30/25 National Voter Registration Day (English-6, Spanish-2) 8
9/25/25 Say Yes to Fruits & Vegetables 38
TOTAL 155

Conference Room Use Only:

Date Title of Program Attendance
9/8/5 Friends Business Meeting 10

Donations to Friends of Cornwall Library:

Date Title of Program Donation Amount
9/25/25 Say Yes to Fruits & Vegetables $10.00
TOTAL: September: $10.00

YTD: $1,022.50



Adult Services September 2025 Report
(Submitted by Dawn S. Thornton)

REFERENCE:

Reference Questions: 86 (113); 1-on-1 Tech Help: 20 (16); Circulation: 46 (54);
Direction: 13 (12); Reader’s Advisory: 5(3); Faxing: 1 (2); ILL/SEAL: 09 (11);_ Quick
Tech Assists: 97 (1055); Pull List: 1299 (1188); Reservations: 0 (0); Printing: 94 (131);
Phone: 28(47);_Guest Pass: 44 (50); Items Lent: 9 (12); Misc: 30 (46); Laptops: 2 (10);
Virtual Ref: 13 (10)

NYTimes Digital Subscription Stats: *N/A= not available at this time

In-House Library usage sessions: N/A (72); page views: N/A (164);

articles read: N/A (106); Offsite Code redemptions: N/A (24); usage sessions: N/A
(539); page views: N/A (2485); articles read: N/A (683)

Notary Service: 51 (53)
Database Stats: Novelist Plus: 29

Ancestry: Searches: 30 (20); Citation Image: 45; Text: 31

Hoopla:

Digital Audiobook: 376 (374); Digital Binge-Pass: 5 (4); Digital Comics: 30 (20); Digital
ebook: 152 (183); Digital Movie: 23 (30); Digital Music: 25 (18); Digital Television: 16
(10)

PC Usage:

Adults’: 355 (355); Children’s: 2 (5); Laptops: 5 (14)

PROGRAMS

Book Chat and Chocolate: 13 (N/A) Members’ Choice Book Group: 3 (3)
Mystery Book Club: 9 (6) Out and About: 9 (7)

Creative Writers: 46 (29)
Midday Matinee: 1—Rescheduled due to technical issues (21)

Thursday Night Movie: 9, (26) Canasta: 43 (36)

Homebound: 3 deliveries

Opera Club: 12(12) Patron Pix: 0 (2)

Teen Tech Tutors: 7 (N/A) Art Reception: 14

Friends Meeting: 10 Homeschool Meetup: 14

Color Yourself Calm: 13 Military History of the JROTC: 13
Retirement by Design: 5 Great Decisions: 10

Say Yes to Fruits and Vegetables: 38



Circulation Monthly Stats for September

Calls for Programming 13
Calls regarding Circulation 89
New Library cards 419
Assist on Special Projects 6
Assist on Computers 24
Assist on Printing 36
Faxing 12
Register for Adult Programming 13
Register for Children’s Programming 2
Assist with Reference 56
Assist with Children’s 17
Libby Help 0
Notary 0
Pull List and Book Drop 174
Organizing Carts 81
Auditing Carts 18
Shelf Reading 1

Ellen Winchell
Service Desk Manager
10/3/2025



Youth Services - End of Month Report — September 2025

Program name Date Children Teen Adults Vols  Total
3rd grade Tour | 9/9 16 5 21
3" grade Tour |9/24 22 6 28
Baby & Me 9/19 7,10 8,12 37
PlayDoh day 9/16 36
Dog Tales 9/8,9/22 1,3 3,1 8
Family Story 9/30 7, 8 7,9 31
Chess Time 9/20 2 1 3
ChatterBooks 9/23 9
Book Break 9/24 3 3
Readzza, Readz | 9/30 2 2
TOTALS 90 47 5 166

Meetings & Enrichment

9/9, 9/30 Department Heads Meeting -Lisa &Liz,

9/15 Library Fundamentals- Aaron

9/23 Staff Meeting -Aaron, Lisa, Liz, & Pat

9/26 RCLS Plan of Service-Children’s and YA Staff Focus Group-Lisa

9/29 Host for CLOUSC Mtg. — Lisa, Liz (8 attendees), Derek Ivie (Creator of The Great Giveback)
presentation

9/30 TBS presentation with Mick Smith-Lisa, Liz
Questions @ the Desk

Reference 293, Circulation 163, Phone 58, Tech 26, Ipads lent 65, Book Clubs 22, Story Times 23, Misc. 38

Respectfully submitted, 10/2/25 ekf



	CPL Board Minutes & Packet October 7.pdf
	CPL Board Meeting Agenda October 8 2025
	Minutes September 18, 2025
	Warrant #3 Sept 2025
	2026 RCLS General Budget documents
	2  2026 Budget & RCLS Service Fee.pdf
	2026 G & ILS
	2026 Service Fee by Library.pdf
	2026


	3  2026 Reference-Guide-General.pdf
	E-RATE FUNDING
	RCLS switched from an annual reimbursement process to a monthly discounted invoice.  E-Rate Funding as a discount is a non-cash item and therefore has been removed from the cash-based budget.  The E-Rate funding will be recognized with the year-end ac...
	FUELS AND UTILITIES


	4  2026 ILS Budget.pdf
	ILS Service Support - Sch. B
	ILS 3 Yr History wrkst


	202609 FY26 BudgetvsActuals
	October 2025 Strategic Planning Committee Report 
	Holiday Schedule 2026
	Holiday Schedule 2026-2027

	SEPTEMBER 2025 DirectorsReport.docx

	Day: 
	Month: 
	Library Name: 
	Board President Print Name: 
	Signature1_es_:signer:signature: 
	Check 1: Off
	Check 2: Off


